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Křtiny township
The township was mentioned for the first time in a document of the pope Gregory IX as an ownership of the convent in Zábrdovice in 1237. The most important building – baroque pilgrimage church of the architect Santini was finished in 1750. Křtiny was impacted by many hardships in its history – stays of foreign troops, plagues, fires. Emperor Joseph II. abolished the convent of Zábrdovice in 1784. The township changed owners many times in following years. Former residence was rebuilt for a chateau by Vincenc from Litice and Bubno in 1864. After the WWII, the chateau was nationalized and reconstructed for a school. The caves Výpustek and Býčí skála on the territory of Křtiny were used as a underground factory Flugmotorwerke Ostmark during the war. 
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Fig. 1 Situation of Křtiny in relation to Brno. The borders of the Protected Landscape Area Moravian Karst are indicated by the green interrupted line.
Buildings of the research institute of the forestry and hunting were built on the Bukovský kopec Hill in 1965. The area is a part of the Training Forest Enterprise (TFE) Masaryk Forest Křtiny of the Faculty of Forestry and Wood Technology of the Mendel University in Brno. Forest land property of the enterprise has an area of 10,265 ha. Forests form a continuous complex immediately linking with the northern limits of the Moravian metropolis of Brno and reaching as far as to the district town of Blansko. The forests are situated at altitudes ranging from 210 to 575 m a.s.l. and are characteristic with a variety of natural conditions, which predetermined the establishment of the special-purpose facility of the university. Mapping of this relatively small area dominated mostly by mixed woods with 46 % of coniferous- and 54 % of deciduous tree species revealed 116 forest types situated in 4 forest altitudinal vegetation zones. Mean annual temperature of 7.5 °C and mean annual precipitation of only 610 mm are limiting factors. Topography is very broken with deep-incised valleys and glens, especially those of the Svitava River and the Křtinský potok Brook. Parent rock is formed by granodiorites, Culmian grawacks and limestone. About a third of the area is situated within the Protected Landscape Area of the Moravian Karst.
Main local tree species are spruce, pine, larch for conifers and beech and oak for broadleaves. Showing signs of regeneration, fir is gradually returning to the forest stands. Excellent growth characteristics are observed in larch whose local population is known as Adamovsky larch. Mixed stands of beech and oak are extremely high performing and their standing volume at adult age reaches over 1,000 m3.ha-1. TFE traditions consist in the application of mild forest management methods with a minimum of clearcuts and with the use of natural regeneration. The shelterwood system is successfully used for beech and oak, on acidic sites and even in spruce stands. There is also a remarkable attempt at a conversion to selection forest.

A range of long-term research tasks is implemented within the framework of paedagogical cooperations linked to international programmes of the European Union, Russia, China, Latin America, etc. Some forest stands and forest production facilities are used for these purposes as special demonstration objects such as research thinning plots in beech, Norway spruce, fir and mixed forest stands, provenance plots of European larch, Norway spruce, silver fir and lodgepole pine, three gene pools (beech, oak and fir) and seed orchards of European larch, Scots pine, Norway spruce, European aspen and mountain elm used in the forestry and landscaping study programmes. The so far published data and research results can be always used for work and study. Great attention is paid to the refurbishment of existing- and to the building of new teaching facilities of primary and secondary wood production for students of timber engineering such as a centre for the rational processing of wood mass as a renewable raw material. The main principle aims at own raw material processing and at products with added value.

An entirely exceptional position is enjoyed by TFE in the fulfilment of aesthetic and educational functions of the forest. There are whole forest stands with the natural species composition that were left without any intervention in the past for the purpose. These stands were later used for a gradual building of the existing network of 19 nature reserves with a total area of 862 hectares, i.e. about 8% of the total TFE area. The arboreta in Řícmanice, Habrůvka and Křtiny are visited both by students and by people seeking a peaceful and pleasant forest environment. Natural beauties of local forests are intentionally maintained and improved and this is how various places and objects have come to existence that make outings of hikers from nearby towns and villages more attractive. There are viewpoints on elevations which are carefully looked after. Forest glades established in the complex of continuous forests are kept with care. Exotic tree species have been planted around the glades to make their surroundings more colourful and attractive. Forest springs are sought and looked after and new fountains are built. Selected places in the forests were chosen for monuments of the Forest Pantheon. This set of more than seventy monuments, fountains and memorial tablets devoted to distinguished foresters, artists who devoted their works to nature, but also to game, trees and forests themselves is a real world rarity.

The management of forest stands requires a good accessibility for the means of transport and mechanization and this is why a new forest road network is being gradually constructed which links up with the spatial arrangement of the forests. Cableway and tractor terrains are being consistently separated by placing forest roads along the terrain dividing lines. Density of permanent forest roads in the broken hilly terrain is 20.1 m.ha-1. Material for repairs and construction of the forest roads is supplied from a quarry in Lelekovice, owned by the TFE.

Mechanization of silvicultural and logging operations is significantly contributed to by the Research station of forest mechanization in Křtiny, which is an organizational unit of the Training Forest Enterprise. Results of its research and subsequent manufacture such as forest cableways LARIX Types 550, 3T, Kombi and Hydro, motor-driven cableway carriage MOKO, reel planters, nursery machines, soil scarifiers, winches, pulleys and chain chokers proved to be very efficient in the forestry practice and are also important trading commodities both at home and abroad.

Harvested raw timber is further processed at a sawmill in Olomučany, erected by TFE and equipped with two band saws, a framesaw to cross-cut lower-diameter roundwood, a Baljer-Zembrod cut-to-length line, three sawnwood seasoning kilns and a steaming chamber. The secondary timber production facility in Josefov makes scantlings, dimension stock, battenboards, matched lumber, packaging material and pallets, and there is also the technology of infinite sill installed there. Last but not least, using a software developed by MiTek Canada the centre in Brno-Útěchov makes wooden ties and roof structures by the technology of gusset plates including the production of large-span wooden structures (GREIM BAU), joinery products and furniture to order.

The centre of forest nurseries in Olomučany produces forest tree transplants and grown-up greenery for afforestation and outplanting both for the Enterprise and for other clients. Self-contained centres for cross-cutting, wagoning and timber transport, workshops for the repair of forest machines and automobiles including a car-wash line, a tire repair shop and an own petrol pump station are situated in Adamov. The Centre of Construction Works in Křtiny provides services in the repair and construction of forest roads and all kinds of masonry, building and craft works. A special centre of Forest Production can provide all kinds of logging and silvicultural works to order from external customers, including landscaping and landscape protection.

With its methods of managing forest stands, forest aesthetics, numerous special-purpose and demonstration facilities, modern manufacture and extensive database of research results the Training Forest Enterprise has become a destination for numerous excursions, practical training and short-term attachments of both experts, students and other visitors from home and abroad. This corresponds very well with the fact that the Enterprise was awarded the Woodmark FSC Certificate for ecological production and management system in 1997, the PEFC Certificate in 2003, and later on also the C-o-C and IKEA certificates. Thanks to its modern equipment and excellent long-term results the Training Forest Enterprise Masaryk Forest Křtiny is referred to in the University Law no. 111/1998 as a prominent facility for paedagogical and scientific activities of students not only from the Faculty of Forestry and Wood Technology at Mendel University in Brno but also for university students and forest experts from Czechia, European Union and other countries worldwide. 
Křtiny have permanent population of 785 people (2010). Its area manifests 1,118 ha, of it 949 ha of forests, 120 ha of agricultural land, 10 ha of built up area etc. There are 181 economic subjects in the commune, of it 80 is doing business in commerce, 28 in industry, 22 in other services, 20 in construction, 17 in primary branches, 10 in education and health-care. Křtiny is equipped with the kindergarten, basic school in a modern building completed in 2000, general practitioner for adults, general practitioner for children, dentist, swimming pool, two sport-grounds, 3 shops, 3 accommodation and 2 gastronomic services. In the period of 2005 – 2009, 40 children were born, 33 people died, 99 persons immigrated, 83 people emigrated. It results in both natural and mechanic population increase on the general level of 5.9 ‰ per year.
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Fig. 2  The Church of the Name of Virgin Maria dominates the township. 
Moravian Karst

The world-famous karst region lies on the territory of Moravia, not far from Brno. It is a fairly hilly landscape dissected by deep valleys of an area of about 92 km2, built up of the limestone of Devonian age. The image of the region has been worked out by the running water since that time, when the region was left by the sea the long bygone geological epochs ago. 
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	Fig. 3  The landscape of Moravian Karst
	Fig. 4  Pustý žleb dry valley


The activity of the running water in the underlying limestone can be seen not only on the surface in deep valleys, karst canyons with sinks and resurgences of the sunken watercourses, dolines and abysses, but also deep in the underground, where the subterranean rivers and the collapse processes have been creating the cave system until nowadays. The cavers, who discovered the caves, have passed already tens of kilometres of galleries and domes, but they have not been able in any case to discover all, that is still hidden in the underground of the Moravian Karst. 
Yet long time ago tour caves out of numerous discovered ones were chosen to be made accessible to public. They are the Sloup-Šošůvka Caves, the Punkva Caves, the Catherine Cave, the Výpustek Cave and the Balcarka Cave. The Punkva Caves discovered by Professor Karel Absolon are the most famous of all thanks to their connection with the bottom of the Macocha Abyss and the cruise on the subterranean Punkva River. But in no way does this mean that the other caves would be second-rate. Maybe for somebody they are not so well-known, but in fact their natural and scientific value is immense, indeed. 
The growth of interest of the visits to them as well as to all the surrounding nice landscape has claimed the legal strict conservation of the entire region of the Moravian Karst. In 1956 the territory was declared the Protected Landscape Area by the law. In this way the caves became an integral part of natural and cultural riches of the State that are to be preserved for the future times. Since 2004, the subterranean stream of Punkva river has been on the list of wetlands of international importance of the Ramsar Convention.
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	Fig. 5  The caves
	Fig. 6  A boat for the underground excursion


The Protected Landscape Area Moravian Karst was established in 1956. Its area contains also 4 national natural reserves, 2 national natural landmarks, 11 natural reserves. 

Moravian Karst is also an important tourist destination of the international importance. The tourism is organized by the Society for Moravian Karst which operates road train and funicular, Skalní mlýn hotel (98 beds), Macocha cottage (60 beds) and a fishery. 
The Punkva Caves connected with the Macocha abyss is the most popular tour. The Punkva Caves can be found in Pustý žleb dry valley, about 1 km from the Skalní mlýn information centre. The caves were discovered in stages in the years 1909–1933 by Professor Absolon’s group of speleologists. The visitors walk through mighty underground spaces and corridors decorated with stalactites and stalagmites as far as the bottom of the world-famous Macocha abyss. The abyss is 138.7 m deep, with fascinating ground dimensions: 174 by 76 m. The foot walk is followed by a motor boat ride along the Punkva underground river. The ride includes the visit to the Masaryk Cave, one of the most beautiful caves of the Moravian Karst. The Punkva Caves are an extension of the longest cave system in the Czech Republic, the Amateur Cave, whose corridors are over 30 km long. The guided cave tour lasts about 60 minutes and covers 720 m of passageway (including number of stairs) and water cruise (450 m). 
Boskovice town

Boskovice was first mentioned on a charter of King Přemysl I in 1222. The owners of the town lands were descendants of noblemen from Boskovice. The King Jiří of Poděbrady decreesed the right to an annual market (Boskovice was then allowed to call itself a small town) in 1463. After many owners, the powerful House of Dietrichštejn came to control Boskovice in 1691. Some baroque buildings were built there. Jews were forced into a ghetto in 1728. Boskovice became to be a town in 1789. Manufacturing (mostly weaving) started to develop in the town. Jews were released from the ghetto, a new community in the Jews quarter was founded in 1848. Boskovice was inherited by the Mensdorff - Pouilly family in 1856. The Jewish quarter was unified with Boskovice in 1919. The Jews were transported from Boskovice by force in 1942. The industry was nationalized and the property of all Mensdorff - Pouilly family was confiscated. The town lost its administrative function in favour of Blansko in 1960. After 1990, the property of the Mensdorff-Pouilly family was restituted and the ghetto and some other historical sights were reconstructed. 
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	Fig. 7 The church of St. James the Elder
	Fig. 8  Reconstructed Jewish town


The town has 10,917 inhabitants (2010). In the period of 2005 – 2009, 542 children were born, 634 people died, 1,255 persons immigrated and 1,155 emmigrated. From it results almost balanced population development: alltogether 8 people have acceded in the 5-years period.
As it was mentioned, Boskovice lost its administrative district function in 1960 after 111 years. Nevertheless, its rival - the town of Blansko – was too industrial and too close to Brno. On the other side, Boskovice has hardly any competition in its vicinity. Other real urban centres are almost missing in this part of Moravia. Due to this fact, Boskovice remained an important centre for the rural hinterland of the northern part of the Blansko district. Its catchment area was even larger from the viewpoint of the area. Additionally, Boskovice shaped as the centre of services against Blansko which was the centre of industry. It is significant that the district enterprise of services settled in Boskovice not in Blansko during the socialist period.
Boskovice is very important centre of education. There is one college (economic and health care) and four secondary schools (grammar school, pedagogical school, secondary technical school André Citroen and private secondary school of entrepreneurship and management) situated there. The hospital has been established by the town of Boskovice. Its capacity is 269 beds, 30 clinics, 9 complementary workplaces. The hospital has 478 employees, among them 63 physicians.
The industry in Boskovice was oriented for garment production (Kras HAKA), production of sewing machines (Minerva) and cutting machines (Novibra), food elaboration. After 1990, the industry slightly decreased. On the other side, some new firms were found with foreign direct investments. The electrotechnic producer ALPS Electric Czech with Japan funds and about 900 employees is the most important of them. 
Present Boskovice is also a centre of tourism. There are some important sights in the town and its vicinity. Let us named the ruins of the Boskovice castle from the 13th century or Boskovice empire chateau – originally convent which was rebuilt for the chateau in 1820s. Former Jewish ghetto with the synagogue (1638) and the cemetery  (the 3rd largest in Czechia) belongs to the main historical places of its type in the country.There are three Christian churches in Boskovice: church of St. James the Elder, evangelic church (1941) and Church of All Saints from 15th century. Some other architectonical sight can be found here: the town hall, the glasshouse in the chateau, so called Residence (museum at the present time), manor house (former complex of farm-buildings, today gallery, library and cinema - café house), riding-hall, former convent (today garni-type hotel), Virgin Mary chapel.
Otter tourist attractions in Boskovice are: sport and shopping centre Blue Tower, information centre, regional museum, thematic park Wild West City Boskovice with theatre performances, country balls and other attractions, salt-cave Boskovice, arboretum, golf resort Kořenec, museum of agricultural machines. There are also some interesting attractions in the surroundings. The tourist infrastructure is formed with 4 hotels, 2 pensions, almost 30 gastronomic services of different character, 4 clubs.
The region Boskovice consists of 6 micro-regions. But centres of the other micro-regions are relatively weak to compare them with Boskovice. That is why the town of Boskovice is real urban centre for 72 communes with 50 thousands inhabitants. The town is also a seat of the Local Action Group of LEADER+ programme. 
Černá Hora brewery

Černá Hora is a market town with 1,944 inhabitants (2010). Name of the place (literary black mountain) comes from a hill whose vegetation is darker than the neighbourhood. Several trade paths crossed this place. First written mention about the location comes from 1279. Since 1390 it acquired township privileges. A castle with a church building inside the park are examples of preserved historical architecture and are protected by the state.
Originally, the Černá Hora Brewery was the Templar brewery Braxatorium Templariorum in Monte Negro. The brewery was first written in 1530. After extinction of the Boskovice House, the township with the brewery lapsed to the Liechtenstein House and it was renovated. The fire destroyed most of the brewery in 1802 and again in 1862. Because of ineffective operation, the brewery was changed into the Agrarian Brewing and Malting Shareholding Company. The enterprise was nationalized in 1949 and incorporated into Central Moravian Breweries, national enterprise Brno. But shortly after, the structure was re-organized. New enterprise was established in 1953: Moravian breweries Černá Hora which put together 5 breweries with Černá Hora Brewery as the leading company. Finally, the joint-stock company Pivovar Černá Hora, a.s. was re-organized in 1996. 
The most important business areas of the Černá Hora brewery are: malt production, beer production, production of nonalcoholic drinks, production of alcoholic drinks, tourism and others. Černá Hora Brewery has 10 types of beer on the market – 3 draught, 3 lager, 3 special and 1 alcohol free. Černá Hora Brewery currently produces 7 types of fizzy drinks and 3 types of table water. Černá Hora Brewery owns a worldwide patent for the production of fizzy drinks with hops. The brewery can currently offer 4 alcoholic drinks, from which 3 are produced using the unique technology of vacuum distillation of quality classically brewed Černá Hora beer. 
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